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To the Members of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

i

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

' Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, incfuding material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accardance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

- Key Aisdit Matter -
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on thesc matters.

See Note 24 to the fnancnal statements

T koy ausit matier _ How the matler was addressed in our audit

The Company s principally engaged in the OQur audit procedures included:

- business of owning hotels. lf's revenue . . . '
: . . . * Tested the design, implementation and .
comprises hotel revenue (including room operating effectiven of the k ntrals of the
revenue, food and beverage revenue and P g Veness e key co
. . revenue recognition process.

| revenue from recreation and other services). :
: i »  Tested the Company's revenue recognition

The accounting policies for different revenue ! accounting policies are consistent with the
. streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial ?«lﬁ
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

statements. applicable accounting standards.

Using statistical sampiing basis. tested the
revenue transactions recorded during the year .
(including year-end cut off testing), with the |
underlying documents such as invoices, bank :
coilections and other relevant documents, as '
appiicable.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the

Company and there is risk of overstatement of .
" revenue due to fraud resufting from pressure to ;
achieve targets and eamings expectations. :

Considering the above, we have identified

" revenue recognition as a key audit matter. * Tested the journal entries relating to revenue
recognised during the year based on specified
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
irregular items.

. » Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating

; to the revenue recognition made in the financial
statements in accordance with the appiicable -
accounting standards.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financiaf controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
frorm material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiai statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
ta geoing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibi!itias féi’ tl'ne"bz.udit'of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
SAMHI JV Business HMotels Private Limited

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Cvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on'the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conciusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaiuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the pianned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes
public disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably he expectad to autweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremems B

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the following:

(i) the back-up of accounting softwares used for maintaining general ledger, food & beverage
revenue records, payroll records and procure to pay records which forms part of the ‘books of
accoint and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode' have not been kept on servers
physically located in Indiz on a daily basis; and

(i) for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the

Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
' Page 3 of 13
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 17 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A (b} above on reporting under Section 143({3){(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B (f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial conirols with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinicn and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

g.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
POSIUON N 1S TNANGIAI STATEMENTS - Kefar NOtE 3411 10 the Tnandial Staiements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable iosses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d {i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed

e

in the Note 42 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any cther person{s} ar entity{ies), including foreign entiies
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42(vi) fo the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person({s) or entity{ies}, including foreign entities {"Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iti) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

€.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {j) and (if} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
containt any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks. except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated threughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

Page 4 of 13
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
SAMH! JV Business Hotels Private Limited

(i) In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compfiance with the audit trail
requirements in the respective independent auditor's reports of service organisations available
for part of the year and in the absence of the independent auditor's reports of service
organisations for the balance period, for accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of
account relating to generai ledger, food and beverage revenue, payroll and procure to pay
process, which are operated by third-party software service providers, we are unable to comment
whether audit trail feature for the said softwares was enabled and operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions, recorded in the respective softwares.

{il) The feature of recording audit traif (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account
refating to revenue process.

(iif) The feature of recording audit traif (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software
used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger.

Further, for the periods where audit trail {edit log) facility was enabled and aperated for the respective
accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered

with.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197{18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
proccribod athor dotoils undor Eootion 107{16) of the Aot which are required to bo commontod upan

by us.
ForBSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

f\:

CINRER Y cui ...

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDHtN:24508605BKGUNMNZ2434
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMH! JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

()

(i (a)

(i)

(b)

{c)

()

@

{c}

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a reguiar programme of physical verification
ofits Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in period of three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were physically verified during the current year. In our opinion, this perfodicity of physical
verification is reasonabie having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with lender. Therefore, we could not verify those title deeds and have not received independent
confirmaticn fram the lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recards of the Company the Company has nat revalied it Praparty Plant and Eaquinment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the infoermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination -

of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for helding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and un lhie basis ul uw exdminalion
of the records of the Company, the Company has heen sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets,
As informed to us and as per the terms of loan agreement of such iimits, there are no
requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liabitity parinerships or any other parties during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has not provided ioans or provided advances in the nature of loans,
or pravided guarantee, or provided security to any entity during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(iii)(a} of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans,
or provided guarantee, or provided security to any entity during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(ii){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)

()

®

{iv)

(vi)

{vii) ()

of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated except for the interest free loan of INR
1,055.70 million [nominal amount] as at 31 March 2024 given to SAMHI Hotels Limited (holding
company}, which is repayable after 31 December 2030 as per mutual consent of the Company
and SAMHI Hoteis Limited. As informed to us, no repayment of ioans and payment of interest
was due in the current year. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of
loan to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of Ioans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of lgans o any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is ne loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given

to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any foans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment.

According to the information and exolanations given ta us and nn tha hasis of aur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the information and
explanations given to us. the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section (1) of the Section
186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since the Company is
engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits fram
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accardingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liahility in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Value Added Tax
and Sales tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our epinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regulariy deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of income tax and professional tax.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Empioyees State insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable, except as mentioned below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

o

{viii)

(ix) ()

{b)

{c)

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date of
statute dues {INR million) | which the date payment
amount '
relates
The Provident 0.29 March 2019 | 15 April | Not yet paid
Employees' Fund (Additional _ 2018
Provident liability due to
Funds Supreme Court
And Judgement)

! Misceilaneous
Provisions Act,

1952

Central Goods | Interest liability . 0.67 - April 2021 - | # Not yet paid
and Services | on Goods and March 2022

Tax Act, 2017 | Services Tax

and State

Goods and

Services Tax
Act, 2017

# These amounts have fallen due at varicus points of time during the year ended 31 March
2022

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recards of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of the Amount (INR | Period to which | Forum where
the statute | dues million) the amount dispute is
relates (FY) pending
Finance Act, | Excess availment 90.93 2014-151t0 2017- | Commissioner
1954 of CENVAT credit 18 of Goods and
(Service tax) | and short payment Services Tax
of service tax {Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loan during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix}{c) of the Order is not
applicabie.

Page 8of 13
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)

(d)

(e)

() (@)

{b)

(xi) (a)

{b)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

{xv)

{xvi} (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overali examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that during
the year, the Company has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to INR 428.35
million for long term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary. associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not

applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order 1s not applicable.

The Company has nat raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(inciuding debt instruments). Accordingly. clause 3(x}{a} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and expfanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Qrder is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has heen filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

Accaording to the infermation and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nighi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our apinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit of the Company for the period under audit is currently under progress. Hence,
the interral audit reports couid not be considered by us.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b) of the QOrder is not applicabie.

The Company is not a Core fnvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the reguiations made by
Page 9of 13
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 {Continued)}

the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c} of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 20168 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi){d) are not applicable.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year; however, cash loss
of INR 842.31 million was incurred in the previous year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has comae to our attention. which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of halance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx) The requirements as stiputated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) and 3(xx){b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248WANV-100022

it_&_l’\ui N mjmﬂ,

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:245086056BKGUMNZ2434
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMH! JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2{A){g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

 Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference ta financial statements of SAMH) JV
Business Hotels Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in cenjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

in our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate interna! financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements oriteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over
Financiai Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note") and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March

2024

W have consideied the maletial weakhness idenlilled and reputed below In delennining the nawue,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2024 financial statements of the Company,
and the material weakness do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2024;

The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
inforration Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated (nformation Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Opera application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2024. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenus from operations in the
Company’s financiai statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonabie possibility that a material misstatemant
of the company's annual or interim financiai statements will net be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

.Managgmenfgi and Board of Directors’ Respon#ibil‘itieé for }ntem_é_al Financial _Cohb:ols ]

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internat financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were cperating effectivefy for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the)

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Page 11 of 13
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024 (Continued)

| Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we compiy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasaonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

raspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contrals with reference te financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internai financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a materiai
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

¥e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified apinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

of lntermal Financial Controts with Reference to Financiai Statemonte

A company's internat financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financia
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made onty in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

- Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financil Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibifity of collusion or impreper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and nat be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
finarcial controfs with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

‘f;’l L\ w N {.2&3 L

Rahul Nayar

Fartner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24508605BKGUMN2434
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SAMEI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USSIGTDL20LEPTC214129

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

fdif gmonnts it Rupees millions. unfesy othervise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial asscts
Loans
Other hinancial assets
income tax assets
Other non-current assets
Tolal pon-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade recetvables
Cash and cash equivalents
{Other financial assets
Cther current assets
Total currest assets

TOTAL ASSETS
FQUITY AND LTIABILITIES

Equity
Fquity share capial
Criher equity

Total cquity

1 iqbilifieg
Non-carrent liabilities
Financial Tiahitities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non- current liabilitics

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bomowings
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total putstanding dues of creditwrs other than micro enterprises and small
ENETPTises
Other nancial liabilitics
Other current lizbilitics
Provisions
Total current Habilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from MNote 1 to Note 42 form an tniegral part of these (inancial stateruents.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Furm Registration No.: [01248W/AV-100022 /Q

llﬁl’\ul M&a B

Rahul Nayar
Fartrer
Membership No.: 508605

Place: Guragram
Date: 29 May 2024

',/
o tj?’

Note

L=l S

1
12
13
14

9
20

DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

For and om behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Privare Limited -

Lhirector
DIN: 833929]

Place; Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024

2,169.71 224998
713.68 1,460.09
17179 4297

2025 11.03
3.32 262
3.078.75 3,766.6%
535 5100
5395 74.71
103,57 50.79
.98 5338
16.29 40.37
190.14 226.35
3,268.89 3,993.04
1,247 80 1,247.80
(1.614.19 (1.806.44}
(366.3%) (558.64)
2942 84 374797
1.50 1.54

294434 3,749.51

439.47 334 83

802 16.83
203134 20632
10.66 1103
L33 3220
092 094
690,94 802.17
3.635.28 4551.68
3,268.89 3,993.04
<~
1'&!1,\'& Chakravarty a Kumari

Comparny Secretary
Membership No.: A35361

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 day 2024



SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIX USS101DL.200IPTC214129

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
{A{l amounnts in Rupees miflions. unfess otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
(Orther tncome

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Employee benetlls expense
Cther expenses

Earmings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation and tax
Finance costs
Depreciation and amorlisalion expense
Profit/{ Loss) before tax
Tax cxpense
Current tax
Deferred rax
Profit/(I.oss) for the year
Other Comprehensive lncome
ftems that will wot be reclassified 1o profit or foss
- Re-measurement gain/foss) on defined benetit obligations
- [ncome tax relating to items mentioned abhove
Other comprehensive income/{loss). net of tax
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year

Earnings/{loss) per equity share (Face value of INR 1 each)

Basic [INR]
Diluted [INR]

Note

25
25

ey

The notes from Note | to Note 12 for an integral part of these financial statemenlts

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Aceowtants
ICAT Firm Registration Mo [01248W /W - 100022

Lokt Noyoa.

Rahul Nayar
Partner
Membership No. 308603

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1,431,359 1,202.40
14414 208 13
1,575.73 1.500.53
87.12 76.89
146.65 104,56
587.94 520 23
821.71 TOL.68
754.02 798.85
460.56 1,584.70
100.96 107.31
561.52 1,692.0
192.50 (893.16)
192.50 (893.16)
{0.23) 0.01
(0,25} 0.01
192.25 (893.15)
154 (7.16}
1.54 (7.1

For and on behalf ol Board of Dircetors of _
SAMIN IV Business Notels Frivate Limited :

DIN 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024

-

Anij

C)r/
p

a Kumari

'I'aﬁya Chakravarty
Diractor
DIN: (018539201

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2624

Company Secretary
Membership Mo.: A35561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024



54 MEH] JV Business Hotels Private 1.imited

CIN US04 D2 1PT214129

Statement of Cash Flows lor the year ended 31 March 2024
(A amenanty 9 Rupees audliens, waless afhenvice stared)

A, Cash flows lrom aperating acti
Prafit ! {loss) before tax
Adjustments lor:

Depreciaon and amorbsation expense
Provis;onsabiiities no longer sequued witten back
[.ose allowance for trade ceceivables

Finange cosls

Enterest incoine

Gam on sale of property. plant and cquipment

Luoss un fereign exchange fluctuaton et

et gain on fair valuation of equity comsoaeent of non-converhble debentunes

Cperating profit before movemeal in assets and Rahilities
{Increase) s Inventeres
[Yocrease / [[ncrease) in ‘rade receivaliles
[Increase) ; Decrazse i other financial asseis
Decrease | {increasa) wn ozher assels
(Decrease] / Increase in trade payables
(Decreaze)  Increase in ather lakilities
[Decrease) / [ncrease i provisians
Increase * [Drecreaze} fn oiker financial liabil:tees
Cash generated from operations
[nocome taxes paid - net
Net cash generared from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and euipment and intangible assess
Sale of property. plant and equipmen
Repayment of loan by haldag sompany
Bank depuesus matared
Bznk deposits made
[nterest recerved
Net cash generated from invesling activities

. Cash flows from financing aclivities
Proceeds from long term berrowargs
Repayment of lony term bormowirgs
Jouan revened foom Heldiog Corvgrany
Proceeds/{repayment) from current borrow:ngs - ne
Finance costs puid
MNet cash genevated used in Mizancing aclivities

Net incrense/{ifec rease) in cash and rash equivalents (A+R+{0)
Cash and cash equivatents ot tre beginmay of the vea:
Cush and cash equivalents af the end of the year

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

i Components 6 Casit and cash equivatents

Cash on nand
Paiances witf haeky
- M1 CLITEIL ACCLNts

ii, Movement in borrowings (including inrerest accrued)

(pening Balance

Changes from financing cash Mows

Proceeds trom lang term barrowimns

Lean ecerved from Holkling Company

Repayment of long term burrowings
Proceeds/(repayment) from current burrswings - net
Fenance costs pad

Other non cash changes
Finance costs

Adjustment against ioan 1o kalding company

Clasing Balance

i, The cash fows From openating acivites sechon ol Staement of Cash Flows b Seen prepared in ascordanve wiih Lhe ‘ndnect Method' as set out o the Ind AS T "Statement of Ca

Thw notes from Mote | te Note 42 form an inegral part of hese firanaial statemants.
As pet our report al even date artached

Fir BRSR & Co  LLP
Chgrtered Accowstants
[CAl Firm Registration Mo 10 248WA- 100022

R@»LWK N Gy

Rahui Nayar
Partray
Membership N 308603

Place Guragam
Date 29 May 2024

Faor the year emded
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 ¥arch 2023

192,50 {493 16)
Lo Be 107 30
3.4} 1575
- 4 80
a0 36 L3864 70
{135 783 (234 37
[StIRAD] -
o 0R 0as
- (37 10
614,55 507,14
i023] (035
2424 (38 26]
{421) 11 6d
410 9 12)
1343 & 45
(1 67y 1177
(030 nEs
414 14 67)
43510 47397
1522 {3461
635.38 470.51
120863 (700
| 0%
187 86 -
189 33 2,344 58
{268 001 (2416 30)
181135 i
170,58 #.78
(9L Im 1100 Q)
IO 00 -
(30 36 44
(4369 (73R
(851.68) (552, 74)
54.78 (73.48)
079 12427
ins.s7 50.79
As at Az
31 March 2024 31 Kiarch 2023
020 028
103 37 051
L0557 50.79

For the year ended
31 March 2024

4.280 58

500 30
{911 79

[EXTY
{43697

¥or the year ended
31 March 2023

12464 31

191050
(1,100 G0
ibB.d4a
(731.658)

457 0 t.578 41
(312 24)
3138366 4,289.98

Farang en behalf of Board of Dereczors off
SANEIL IV Business Hotels Private Limited
¥

2

ajal Mefira
PECIIr
DN D681 308

Flace: Gurugram
Date 2% May 20324

Tanya Chakravarty
urscior
DTN OR339231

Blace: Cruryygram
Date 29 May 2024

Anjana Koamari
Clnmpamy Srerelory
Membership No - A35581

Place Ciurugeam
Date 29 May 2024
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1

1.2

™
|15

Corporate information

SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domictled in [ndia. The
Company was incorporated in india on 15 February 2011 as per the provisions of [ndian Companies Act
and is limited by shares. The registered office of the Company is at Caspia Hotels Delhi, District Centre
Crossing, Opp. Galaxy l'oyota Outer Ring Road, Haider Pur, Shalimar Bagh, New Delhi, [ndia, ! 10088.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating intcrnationally
branded hotels across key cities in the [ndian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has two hotels under it (Courtyard by Marriott, Bangalore and Fairfield by Marriott,
Bangalore) which are operational.

Basis of preparation

Statemenl of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act”) and other relevanl provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 29 May 2024,

Netails of the Company’s accounting policics, including changes thereto, are included in Note 2 and Note

2.1.

Functional and presentation carreacy

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is alse the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which
are measured on an alternative basis on cach reporting date:

Items | Measurement Basis

Financial assets and Iabilites i.e., . Fair Value
|

derivative mstruments ‘

Also, refer Note 41 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.

Usec of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from thesc estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

arc recognized prospectively.




SAMHI JV Business Haotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ALl amounts in Rupees millions, unfess otherwise stated)

[nformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabililies within the next financial

year arg:
i) Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which invoives key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outtlow of resources.

ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows,
obsolescence, demand, competition and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful
lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each

reporting date.

iii) Employee benefit obligations
Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using acluarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates. Due
to the estimates involved in the valuation and its iong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptinns are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv) Fair value measurement of financi2l insiruments

T'he fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets arc not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inpuis to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions abowr these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Also, refer Note 35 for (urther disclosures.

v) Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are teviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent thal it is no longer
probable that the related tax benelit will be realized.

vi) Measurement of expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically obscrved default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusled for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
obscrved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

E.

1)

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cyvele for determining current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibilily Tor overseeing
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding

Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used 1o measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of [nd AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to scil the assct or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market {or the assel or lability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used

in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obscrvable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs),

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. then the fair value mcasurcment is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair valuge
hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has cccurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 35.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress,

Cost comprises the purchasc price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition

for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components} of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subseguent expenditure related to an iterm of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if'it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will low to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or

loss when the assct is derccognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated uselul lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets” residual values and useful lives are revicwed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. in case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining usefu! [ife.

Depreciation on addition/ {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Assct Category* Management estimate | Useful life as per Schedule
of Useful Life H to the Companies Act,
2013
Building 15-60 years 60 ycars |
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-25ycars ! 15 years
| Furniture and fixtures 5-8years 10 years
Vehicles 8 years 8 vears
Office equipment 5-10 years 5 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are dilferent from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013.
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any.
Subsequent expenditure s capitalised only when it increases the future economic benelits from the specific
asset to which it relates.
Amgrtisation
Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three years). The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected usefu! life of the asset is significantly
different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.
Gains or losscs arising from derecognition of an intangible assct are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

}) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant (inancing component) or financial
Hability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

0

[

—
ERL=T
/@\i,,-—-..._ = o




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

fi.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCTY;

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or
- Equity investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except il and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A (inancial asset is measured al amortised cost il it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FV'IPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at F'VTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by boih collecting contraciual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solcly
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above are measurcd
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cosl or at
[FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would

otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

‘The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset Is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated poiicies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuscs on carning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial asscts held within that
business model) and how thosc risks arc managed; and

. the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales

and expectations about future sales activity.
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Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purposc, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (¢.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows arc solely payments of ptincipal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the liming or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. [n making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recoursc features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

~ Financial | These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses,
assets at inctuding any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measurcd at amortised cost using the effective
" interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interesi
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measurced at fair value. Interest income under the
at F'vOCl effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassificd
o profit or loss,

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
investments as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
at FVOCI - part of the cost of the investment. Other nct gains and losses are recognised in

OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financidal liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A finangial liability is classified
as at FVIPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and nel gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subscquently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses

e,
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are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

i Derecognition

i

V.

Vi.

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company ncither transfers nor retains substantially ali of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not

retain control of the financial asset.

[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets arc not

derecognized.

Financial llabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its conlractual obligations arc discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability bascd on the moditied
terms is recognised at fair vaiue. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss,

Offselting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either 10 settle themn on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest free louns

The Company has provided interest free loan o its holding company. Such interest free loans are measured
at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash flows and
discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans. The
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans has been debited to other equity in
the books of the Company. The lean component is subsequently measured at amortised costs and interest
income Is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Non-convertible debentures

The Company had issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial
liability in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has been
separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity compenent was fair valued through
profit or loss at each balance sheet date till their maturity in the previous year.




i\

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Vil

4)

Madification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assels:
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to

cash flows from the original financial assct are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized al fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modilication does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. [n this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial assel and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or 1oss.

Financial liahilities:

The Company derccognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modilied liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amoumt of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

A, Impairment of financial instruments

N,

The Company recognises loss allowances for cxpected eredit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cOsl.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carricd at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assct have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the foliowing obscrvable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the botrower or issuct;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for two years or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measurcs loss allowances at an amount cqual to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

-other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial rccognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible defauit events over
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the expected life of a financial instrument.

| 2-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument

is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit [osses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.c. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix 1o determine impairment loss aliowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances tor financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount ol the asscts.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial assel is writlen off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the ¢ase when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have asscts or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off, However, financial assets thal are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery ol amounts due.

{mpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on Internal/external factors. 1f any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amounl is

estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of (he asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
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6)

7)

8)

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset {or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an assct or CGlJ exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
it any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrving amounts of the other assets of the CGU {or group of

CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impatrment loss in respect of goodwill is not subscquently reversed. [n respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Enventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carricd at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory
to their present location and condition. [n determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO™) method is used.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimalted costs (0 make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that {i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i1) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Provisions {(other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
prohahle that an ontMow of resonrces emhodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at

each reporting date.
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyvond the conirol of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
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9

reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment Lo interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than tcmporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in Lhe period in which

they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

()

(b)

f

Short-term emplovee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services arc classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia,
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Emplovee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts, Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes, The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme {or service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an assct to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund.
Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefil entitiement and measures cach unit scparately to build up the final

obligation.
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(©)

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obiigation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet daie, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtaitments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utitize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of cmployment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the cmployee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumpticns are recognized in the profit or {oss.

11) Revenuc recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e., on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the Company
has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to de invoicing, the
same 1s presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract lability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is carlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under an
obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilitics are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or

services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recrcation and other services (inciuding banquet and
allied services) relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale
of food and beverages which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages arc sold and
other services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.
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12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company s right to receive
pavment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective inlerest method.,
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

the gross carrving amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial lability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortiscd cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recogrition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. Il the assct is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transtated into the (unctional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resuiting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in lorcign currencies at
vear end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or

loss, within finance costs. Al other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on

a net basis.
14) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other comprchensive

income.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty relaied to
income taxes, if any. [t is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultancously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
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tax is also recognised in respect of carricd forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for

+ temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilitics in a transaction that:
is not a business combination; and
at the time of transaction (i} affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does not
give risc to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused lax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. I'uture taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary ditferences.
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the
business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting daltc and arc reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed

when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount ofl'ils asscts and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right (o ofTsct current tax liabilities
and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entitics, but they intend to settle current tax labilities and assets ona nct basis or such tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to lransaclions with any
of the Company’s other components. and for which discrete financial information is available, Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiet operating
decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments
used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to
allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable 1o equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equily shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the resuits would be anti - dilutive.

A




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2624
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise staied)

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subjcet to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
18) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present garnings before finance costs, depreciation and amertisation and Lax
{EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss, The Company measures
EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does
not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense and tax expense.

19) Expeaditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisiens are made for all known losses and liabilities.

2.1. Changes in mailerial accounting policies

1) Material accounting pelicy information

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendment to Ind AS 1) from | April 2023.
Although the amendments did not resuit in any changes in the accounting policy themselves, they impacted
the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policics, The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements.

et e s e e e s
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SANMME JV Business Hoteds Private Limited

T USS101 DL2ZONPTC2 14119

Nutes Lo the linanciai siztements for the year ended 31 March 2024
FAN emonnts i Rupees miffions, uniess otherise s

5 Non-corrent linancial assets - Loans As at Asat
{Lingeeteed, comsidared good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loan to related party
Laan to helding compars BEL: * A6 09

713.6% 1, 461348

Taterest free lnan
As on 31 March 2024, the Company has provided interest Free loan to boldmg compaiy amountiag to INR 434,42 (31 March 2023 - INR 431.62) which 15 repayable at any date after 31 December 2030 a5 per

mutual consent of the Company and the holding company  The loun 13 prov:ded in Indian Rupees These oans were advanced to heldng company for meeting project expenses and business purpese
fnterest bearing loan

As on 31 March 2024, he Company bas provided loan to holdg compary amowntizg 0 DNBE 22525 (30 Mareh 2023 - INE 1028 470 including acerued orerest of INE & 39 (3] March 2023 - INR 124 53}
which ts repayable after 3 years from the date of first disturemnent 1e. 21 January 2022 The Toan is given at intorest cate of 11 30% pa {31 March 2023 - 19 30% pa ) The loan 15 provided in [ndian Rupees.
These loans were advanced to ho'ding company for meeting projest expenses ard business purpose requucmenss

Drarng the current year, the Company has extended the teom of sugh migrest baaning loan wo & years frant the date of fiest disbursement,

Loans and advances to specified person
As at 31 March 2024 % 1o atal loan & advences| Asat 31 March 2023 Y to total lpan & advances

Name of Borrower

SAMHI Holels Limited (Floldiog Company} 71368 10083 1.4a0 09 100%
£ MNan-current lioancial assets - Others Asat Asat
fUimvecired, consrfercd goud) 3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Fank ceposits (due to malure alter 12 musths leon Qe epon Loy datep*y 1632 E1IRS
Security deposits 058 598
171.7% 42.97

* [rcludes interest acerued on bank deposets amountng to MR 026 (31 Marel 2023 - INR 0 7E)
4 lecludes bark deposits ander hon amounting to INB 164 24 {31 March 2023 INR 36 15)

T Income tax assets Asal As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tax deducred at sonrce 2025 1103
.25 11.03
&  Incometax For ithe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A; The major compsnents of income tax expensefiincome) ars
Recugnised in profit or loss
Current tax - -
Deferred tax -
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Recognised in (dther comprehensive income
Income tax on other comprebens:ve mcome -
R. Reeonciliacion of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate}
For the year ended 31 March 2024 Tor the year ended 31 March 2023
i Amgunt ko Amnount
Profit/{1l.oss) before tax 192 50 (B3 |6
Tax using the Compaty ‘s domeste tax rale 25 b7 45 43 3T (224 75)
Tax ellect ol
Non-cenvertible debentures (PTK ebliganion recognesed through cguube) - - 2040} (262 SH)
MNor-deductible expenses 1016} {030 {0114} nis
Nen teecgnition of deferred taxes on tempoeary differences (132 83) 1294.19) {57 29} 3166
Orhers [27 82 24003 278 {24 £R)
Effective tax rate - - - -
C. Deflerred tax assets/liabilities Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets
[nabzorbed business Josses and depreciabion 243 38 TI5 74
Laoss allowance for trade recervables ae? 1355
Lean to Lelding company 143 79 157 OB
Browision for empioves benelds L85 Liw
58965 585,76
Delerred tax liabilities
Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assels 160621 151 38
Orhers - 340
. 160.21 161.78
42948 T23.08

i K
BT -'\‘3.&[ weal enf};" the Gompany has sigmificant unabserhed deprecianon and carcy foeward business losses as per neome tax Act, [961 I view of absenve of reasonable certainty of sufficient future Lavable
‘p{oﬁts,ﬁf‘éﬁed tax gssers has been recogmized 1o the wabert of defered wax habilivies anly




SAMIIL JV Business llotels Private Limited

CI™ USSL 20T I PTC214129

Nofes te the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
AN amunents i Rupees millions, wadess othernvire sated?

[+. ¥ovement in temporary differences

31 March 2024

Ralance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
1 Aprid 2023 differences generated but 31 March 2024
Particulars not regngnised during the
vear
(A} (B} {C=A+B)
Leferred tax assers
§_nabsorbed business lo3s and depreciation 725 Ta (282 18} 443 3%
Laozs albowance for rrade recesvables 133 (088 Q&7
Loar: 1o holdig comgany 15708 {13 39 14279
Provision for smployee benelits 1.3% a6 1.8
885,76 (296.07) 559.60
Deferred tax diabilitics
Property. plant and equipment and intangnble assets [L&] 38) 117 [Llad 2t
Others {40t 0 Ay -
{161.78) 1.57 {16621y
Net deferred tax asset 72398 1294.50) 429.48)
31 March 2023
Balance as at Delerred tax on Balance as at
1 April 2022 differences generated but 31 March 2023
Particulars not recegnized during the
year
{A) (B) {C=A+D)
Deferred tax asseis
L'nahanrhed husiness loas and Searacianon 413 3% Ji2 e 725 In
Lisallowanece uider Seclion 438 of the lovore lax Acl, 1961 (fin acoiued 1788 137 8 -
nberes)
Laoss allowance for rade reccivahles 134 120 155
[.oan e halding comnany 1455 BY [L1.81) [57 08
Proneision for emplovee berelits 1353 {216 1.3%
624.24 26132 385.76
Deferred tax liabilities
Pronerty, plan and ecupment and intanaohle assets [iel 70} UK i lal 38)
Non-comvernble debentures (248 13) 24823 -
Others t199) 133 {0.40)
($11.92) 250,14 {161.78)
Net delerred tax asset 211.32 311.65] T23.98

E. Tux fosses carried forward

As at
31 March 2024
Amaunt Expiry Lhate
{Financial vear)

Tax lowves for wluch no delared tux asset was tecogrused walh expiry dale ae as foilows,

Bus:ness ioss 104 31 28-20
Business [oss O75.GH 2020-30)
s loes 5978 20310-31
bed depreciztun 21820 Never capice
As at
31 March 2023
Amount Expiry Erate

(Financial year)

Business Joss 25390 2028 29
Busmeas loss 10075 G0 XHI1Z0-30
Busmess loss 1,036 16 2030-3]
Lioabsorbed Zeprec-aticn 518.20 Newer expire
% Other non-current assets Asal Asat

finvevured, comsudvred good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Capital advances 297 2.25
Advances other than capital advances

C35 uir

Prepaud expenses

332 262




SAMII IV Business Hotela Private Limited
CIN LSS DLITIFTC2 L4129
Notes o the nancial statements For the vear ended 31 March 2029

FAIT ameeniy i Bupees mrilfiovs, anfeny oitaeen g ssised)
10 [nventeries As at Asoul
Tveiaeend f e fowe cf sust e el eertind e velid 31 Murch 2624 31 ¥larch 2023
Facd and beverapes 535 3.0
535 H.10
11 Current financief assets - Teade receivables As at Asat
(Tinswenred) 31 March 2024 JE March 2023
Trade recgivables
-Cangadered grood A58 84 H
~Cigdit impanied 1413 |9
Linbubhed cevvoue =
-Considened pood [ER{ES O =
5662 8086
Less Loss allowance . 26T [HE
] 5395 7471

* Mot of advancy from costumers ol TR 3 73431 Macch 2023 - INR 224

u) The Compatny's ssposur o erdn and curreses nsks, and woss allowane.s related 10 crde recervakles are diselosed 1= Note 23
b) For recewvablas seeured apainse borrowings refer o Note 17 and Nate 15,

Trade receivable ageing schedole

Asat i MorchO4 000 0000000000000
_ Gutstanding for fallowing periods (rom the date of transartion
i | ) 3
Particufars Linbilled Revenue Less than & : 8 months - | I-2vears | 1- 5 years More than Total
mehths year : YEAFS
1+ ETCTH Y 1 - 55,59
- . R -] IR E] 03 1,03
1203 8.1 120 rad] 0.49 054 36,62 |
As ut 3 March 2023 X
I Outstanding for fallewing periods {tom she date of transaction
H i - " than 3 |
Particulars Unbifled Revenue Lesstian f pomonths 11 L 2 3 vears pee than Totat
munths yEAr " years
1) Unlisputed Frade roceevables  vonsidzsad geod 1243 AU T ifidl 319 Lo.ke7 118 3T
{1 Unidispated Trade recevables — credit mpaimed - - - nal r1s [k 1,49
Total ; 15,33 0,72 EETE .26 186 80,86

The Compara docs not hasc am daspeicd teade cocovablos as at 31 March 2024 and 31 Rlarch 2005




SAMIH JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2ZOTIPTC 4124

Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2024
(Al emotnts m Rupees nuflons, nnless otherwise stated)

12 Current financial asscts - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with hanks
- on cugrent accounts

13 Current fnancial assets - Others
fUnsectived, constdered good)

Bank deposits (due o maturc within 12 months of the reporting date)
Sceurity deposits
Other recervables®

* Refor Note 34 for ratated party balances

14 Other current assets

flinsecured, considered good;

Staff advance

Advance to supphers

Baiance with statuton, authoritizs
Frepad expenses #

Dther advances

# includes current portien of non-current prepaid expenses amounting o INR 933 (31 March 2023 - INR 0 1 5)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

.20 0.z%
105,37 5051
105.57 =0.79
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- 50.00
237 261
6,61 277
8.98 55,38
As al As at
3t March 2024 31 ¥arch 2023
(0 014
43 208
537 3091
916 8,50
0.18 34
16.29 40,37




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DLI0TIPTC2dLEY

MNotes ta the Anancial statements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2024
CAN crremnirey i Bupees meffoss, eofess o stared)

Ay al As at
3t March 2024 3 March 2023
Kamber of shares Amuunl Number ol shares Amgunt
15 Equity share rapital

Anthorised share capital
Equity shares of INR LD each 17340 00,000 1,305 (1) 130,000 D0 1,300.00

1 30,(K00, D04 1,304.00 130,000,100 1,300.00
issued, subscribed and Tully paid up
Equiry shares of [MR 10 each [ 24, TROOGD 1,247 &0 122 7R0.000 247 8C

124,780,000 1,247.80 124,780,000 1,247.80

ding at the beginning and at the end ol reparting year

#) Reconciliation of the equity shares autst

For the year eoded
3 March 2023

For the yepr ended
31 March 2024

Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amount
Issued. subscribed and fully paid up
At the begmning of the vear 124,780,000 1,247 82 124,780 500 L 247 EU
Balance at the end of the year 124, 780,H0 1,247,580 124,780,000 1,247.80

b] Rights, prefarences and restrictions atiached to equity shares

The Company has anfy o chass of ey shares haviog the pan value of INR 10 per share Each holder of cquaty share 15 entitled i one vote per share The squily shares are enutled to recerve divicend as and when
declaced [n the event ol hquidation of the Company, the bolder of equity shames wiil lre enteiled Ly recerve remaiming assets of the Cempany, afler disuisatien of all preferennial amounts The dasteibution wibl be

praperton te the number ol epty shares held by the shareholde:s

¢) Shares beld by holding/iltimate holding company and! or their subsidiaries! associates

As at Asoat

Name of shareholder 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number ol shares Amourd Number of shares Amount

Equity shares of [NR 10 each
SARME Hotels Lrnited {Toldong Campary 124,780,000 WS 1] 24780000 1,247 20
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% aguity shares

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Name of shareholder

LEyuiry shares ol TNR 10 each
SANMUHL Hielels Lincted, Holdiog Conpany *

*1 equity share is held by Mr Grana Das as a rominee sharcholder

e} Mo snames huve beun alloited waithont paymenl of eash ot by wav of bonus shares or boughe back during the peniod of live years somediately preceding the Balunce Sheet date

] Details of promoters shareholding as at year end

Agat 31 March 2024

Nomber ol shares

124,780,000

i ol holding

10818

SNumber of shares

|24 28OO00

" of holding

14

Nao, of shares at the

Change during

No. of shares at the

» change during

% of Total Shares

SiNo Promoter begiuning of the the year end of the year ihe year
¥EAP
| SAMEE Tlotels Lamited [Holdmy Company) 124,780,000 - 124 780,000 | G
As at 31 March 2023
No, of shares at the . R ) N R
LNo Promoter beginning of the Change during ~ No. of shaves at the % of Fotal Shares ¥ change dl..ll'll'!g
tive year end of the year the year
vear
| SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holdhng Company] | 24, T80 0H) 124,780,000 R -
Agat Asgal

L6 Other equity

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Capital reserve 3244 3i<4
Eetamed sarmines {13422 (2074 34)
Cuncessional meerest compoenenl of loan L boliing company (610 54) |G 53}
Exquety compaonent of anon-convertible debentares 806,20 #0620
(L614,19) {1.806.54)

As at As at

a) Relamed earnings

31 March 2024

31 Muarch 2423

Balarce at the beginring of the vear [2.034 344 (1,141 3%
Prefiti{Loss) for the year 192 30 {23593 1o
Transferred from remeasurement of defired benetis abligation {025y 0ol
Ralance at the end of the year (1,842,29) {2.034.54)
Retamed varnings represeat the amount of aceumlated losses of the Company.
b} Canc | interast comy 1 8l lpan to holding company As at As at
31 March 2024 M March 2023

Balanee a the beminning of the year (10 34 (610 34)
Balance ot the enc of the year 1610.54) 1610.54)
I'his sepresents the concessional interest eampenent of the iaterest free loans given to SAMEL Plosels Limited, the Halding Company

As al Asal

af
ey of the year

3 March 2024

31 March 2023

L AT PERTE v
| Ré’nﬁin:urem‘énts nfgfe,ﬁned epefit habliyasset (net of tax) (03253 ol
wIrznskgrred o Telg.rﬁed EANERES 025 [HEY)

L
h{la.r.cc artheEnd of the vem
1 L, - et
ey, et N o . .
,’f Remeasureriients of defined benefit Jizhihiy/assel comprses actanal gams and losses




SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USR101DL2OTIFTCI412%

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2024
A H antimetts i Repees wldirons, tiders offeruise siated;

As at As at

d} Capital reserve
3 March 2024 31 Alarch 2023

aamue a the beginnang af the vear 3244 3244
Additions made dunap the vear - -
Balanee at the end of the wvear 3244 I1A4
Thus represents captal reserve recagnised on ain on early repayment of loar by holding company

As at As at

e} Equity romponent of non-convertible debeninres
3 Nlarch 2024 M ¥arch 2023

Bulance at the beginnmng of the yeur BOo 20 263 30
et gain on far valuation af equity eomponent of nan-canvert.ble deberiures - (57 10
806,20 a66.20

Balance at the cnd of the vear

Munng the fnancial vear ended 31 March 2022, SAMHI MY Busmess Horels Private Lamterd had ssned 4100 arlissed, sesured, redeemable, non-converhble debentures of a tace value of INR 1000000 euch on the
tarms and condisions set out an Debenture Trust Deed {DTDY. As per DTD, return on non-convertible debentures was sum of Cash Payment i K (PIKY and Convertible FIK Cush PEK was an amount thar waould
wive the stebenture hobder a ceturn equal 1 14 50% 1a compeunded monthly dunrg the term of debentures. Convert:ble PIK was partion of accrued niesest on the non-convertible debentures that was to be converled
iato equity shares of SAMH] Hotels Limuted (Heiduy Companyy in accordanes vath the SAMMD shares aliotment agreement dated |9 Jaauary 2022 between SAMHL JV Dusiness Flarels Prevate Lamited, holdiny

company and debenture irugtee

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the non-comvertible dehentures have been sertled whers the cush PIK somponent has feen paud and the Conertible PIK compunent bas beer: converted 1ot 8202419 equiy
shares of the Holding Compary. The abeve equity component balance represents the fair » zlue of the comvertible FIK obligation of nen—comemble debeotures
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SAME IV Business Tlotels Private Limived

CIN US5201DL201TPTC214129

MNetes o the financeal statemends for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al anrurets tn Rupees mfhions wnless ofieratse séated)

L%  Non currcat provisinns As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employes benefies
Giraturly (Refer Mot 27 (6R 039
Compensated absences (Refer Note 27) 082 1ts
1.54 1.5
19 Current finangial liabilitics - Borrowings As ar As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(ash eredit and overdraft facilities from bank {secured) * 36837 37179
Cutvent maturities of long-term bomrowings {Refer Note 17) 7LD 16304
439,47 534.83
*includes interest accrued amounting o INR 2.94 {31 March 2023 - INR 3 35
Cash credit and averdreaft Facilities from bank
Paréiculars Sanctioned nlerest rate charged per Repayment Security decails
Amount 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Term3
{INE Millions)
CITIBANK. N A 40000 3 months T-bill rate] ¥ manths T-bil? ratz| Repayable on 13 Lirst exclusive mortgage on the Assets of borrower and Asseis of Co-
- Margin (3 75%) t e | + Murgin (3.75%) Le [dernand. Borowers {Barque [lotels Povate Lirited and Argon Hotels Private
160.77% 10 30 Limited). including murtgage over leasshold righes for leased assets.

ii] Hypothecaton on the receivabdes and Hank accounts.

i) 99% af share pledge of the bomewers shares and Non disposal
undertaking on the halance wn-pledged fone SAMHID Hotels Lunited

iv) Corporaie Ciurantes of SAMHI Hotels Lunited

20 Current financial fiabilities - Trade payables As ar As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payables
- total ourstanding dues of micro enterpreses and small enterprises (MSAMF) .02 16.85
- total ourstanding dues of creditars other than rmicre enterprises and small enterpreses 20134 206 32
209,36 12317
a) Rufer Note 37 for disclosurss under Micro, Small and Medunn Enterpoises Devetoptuent Act, 2006 {MSMED).
by Refer dote 74 for dues to related partes.
¢t The Cotnpany's exposure o cuerency and houadity rasks relaed w imedes payables s disclosed in note 33,
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
O dirg For Tollowing periods from due date of transacton
Particulars Accrued expenses Less than 1 year -1 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tual
MSME - 3402 - - - 8.02
{rthers 67 3 13100 - - - 101.34
Tocal 47.34 142,02 - - : 209,36
As at 31 March 2013
Custanding for fellowing periods fram due date of transaction
Particulars Accrued expenses Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
MSME - 16 85 - - - 16,85
Olhers 4267 133.06 1303 0.26 i1.28 206,32
Tatal 42.67 140.H1 [3.05 6,24 11.28% 22317
The Company does oot have any disputed dues which ars payable as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
21 Current financial liabilities - Others As at Asat
31 March 2024 3F Murch 2023
Interest accrued on borrowings {Refer Noge 17) .35 TR
Erployee related pavables 6,135 359
Payable for capital assets 1.32 -
Other payables .58 -
0.26 (]

Securiry deposits recerved

10.66 11.03




SAMUIE JV Business Hatels Private Limited

CEN USSLEIDL20TTPTC2L4129

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
AN amouniy i Rupees mllions, wideis othenrive siated)

22 (nher cerrent Habilices

Advance frant customers
Seatutory dues payable

13 Current provisions

Provision for empioyee benefits
Gratwity (Heter Vot 37)
Compensaled absences (Reler Note 27)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
H March 2023

397 569
26.56 M5l
34.53 32.20

As at
3t March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

028 13
06l .79
092 94




SAMHLJY Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USSTOTELZONIPTC214129

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
FAl ctmensars et Supees wadiions, wbess atherwive steted)

34 Revenue from operations

26

27

Sate of services

- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenue

- Recreanan and ather services

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1 041.79 ol E9
33346 Pl e
56.34 29.70
1,431.59 L 202,40

The contract ligbilines primarily relate to the advarce comsideration recerved from customers far which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation s over! services debvered
Advance collection is recogmsed when payment is received belore the related performance obligation is satistied This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms ¢ restaurant/
banquets Revermue s recogmsed onee the performance obligatian 1s mel L o rootn stay! sale ol food and beverage ¢ provasion of bimemet services. Lxeess of revente gver inviiging 1s recorded

a3 unbilled revenue. Revenue recognised in the Statzment of Profic and Loss 15 same as the contracted pree,

Contract liabilities
Advaiee from customers

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

The amount of revenus of INR .42 (31 March 2023 INR 7.97) recognised in the reporting peried was included in advance trom custemer batance at the beguning of the penod.

Trade Receivables

Mote Congiderimng the nature of business of the Company, the above trade cecaivables 1 converred into cash within the same operatmg evele.

Other income

[nterest income from financial assets ar amortised cost

- bank deposits

- om dean to Bedding company

Provisionssliabilines no longer required written back

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

Met gain on faw valuation of equity cemponent of not-convertible debentures
[nterest on income rax refund

Miscellaneous income

Cost of materisds consumed

Consam ptien of foed and beverages
tnventory al e begnning of The year
Add - Purchases during the year
Inventory af the gnd of the vear

Employee beacfits expense

Salaries, wages and banus

Cantribution o provident fund and ether funds (refer "a’ belew)
Compensated absences (refer b’ below)

Statf welfare expenses

a. Defined centribution plans

3497 5 69
LR 471
Far the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
372 10.96
132.03 223,09
3.49 573
0.3t -
- 700
- a7
1.59 1 98
144.14 298,13
For the year ended For the vear emded
31 March 2024 31 March 2423
5.10 453
873 B!
(5.35) (5.10)
#7.12 75.89
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
122.63 87213
.28 5.06
58 L]
14 16 9.29
16665 104.56

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percantage of employes salanies, in respect of qualifiing emplovees towards Provident Fund. Labour Welfare Fund and Employees’
Stare lpsuranee, which are defined contnbution plans The Company has ne oblizations other than to make the specified contributions, The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
acerue. The amaunt recagnised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fimd, Labour Welfare Fimd and Employees’ State Insurance for the year apuregated to INR 3.28 (31 March 2022 -

[MR 6 06} Also. Refer Mote 32,

b. Campensated absences

The principal assumptions used in determuning the obiigaticn are as given below:

FParticulars

hscounding tale pa
Salary growih rate p.a.

¢. Defined Benefil Plan

Giratuiry

Far the year ended
31 March 2024
01-

715
5.50

For the year ended
31 March 2023
Yo
704
3.30

The Company has i defined benefil grataly plan. Every emplovee who has completed five years or more of service sets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (fast drinvn salary} for cach

completed year of service. The scheme 1s net funded.
P




SANHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL201IPTC2141029

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3§ March 2024
LA amaonnts e Rupees aublions, wsless otherwe sated)

These plans evpically expose the Company to actnarial risks such as: imvestment nisk, irherent interest rate sk | Yongesaly risk and saiary tisk

Investinent risk
The preseat vilue of the defined henefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee} 15 caleulated using a discount rate whicl is determined by reference t marker yields #t the end of the

raporting periad on government bonds

Taterest rate risk
The defimed benefil oblipation caleulated uses a discount rate based on povernment bonds. If bond yrelds fall. the dutined benetir obligation witl fend to increase.

Langevity risk
The present vakue of the defined benefit plan bty is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortabity of plan participants both durmg and after their employment. An merease in the

life expectancy uf the plan parmcipants will increase the plan's fabliey.

Salary risk
Higher than gxpueclsl inoreases in salary will increase tive defined benetit obligation.

The following rables summiaries the componeits of net benefit expense recognized in profit or loss and amounts recognized in the Balanee Sheer for the said plan:

a1y Expense recognised in the Sta nt of Profit and Loss

Far the vear ended For the year ended
Particutars 31 March 2024 31 March 2623
urtent service cost .28 0.1a
[nterest cost 0.04 0.04
Total included in "Emtployec benefits expense’ 0.3z 0.20
b} Hemeasurements recognised direcily in oiher comprehensive income
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mat actuanal (gma)toss recopmzed o the year frome
- changes in demographic assumptions . -
- changes i financial sssumption: - (003
- changes in experience adjustments 0.25 42
Amount recognised in ather comprehensive loss/{iacome) 0.25 (LA
¢} Change in present value of benedit obligation
For the vear ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2{124 31 March 2023
Prosent value of obliganion as ar the beguming of the vear 0.34 074
Curtent service cost 0.28 016
Interest cost 0.04 0.0
Remeasurements of defined benefit Tiabn liny‘assee (netof tax) 0.15% [N ]
Benefits pasd LSS 10403
Present value of obligation ax at ihe end of the year 0.96 0,54
d} A ts to be reconnised in Balance Sheet
As at As at
Particolars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of the delined benehil ablygation af the end of the vear .96 34
Fundad status - -
et liability recognised in the Balance Shegt 0,96 0.54
Man-cutrent .68 0.39
Current 028 013
€] The principai assemptions used in determining the gratuity benefit obligation are as given below:
As at Ag at
Particulars 3t March 2624 31 March 2023
Y e
Econemic assumptions
DHscounting rate pa (1) T3 T.04
5 5 550

Salary srowth rate pa (i)

(i) The discount raty is generally based upon the market yields available an Giovernment buncls a the aceouating date with a tenm that matches that of the liabilities
{ii} The salarv growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and acher relevant (actors on long term basis.

As at As at

BPemographic assumptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retirement ape (vears) R 38
Withdrawal Rate
Agres Ya o
Up tor 30 vears a1 it
From 31 4o 44 years 61 trl
Above 44 vears K 61 &l
hMortality rate © D0 Indian assured lives 100% Endian assured lives

maertality (1312 - t4) moertality (2012 - 14)

£ The Company's best estimate of expense for the next year 13 INR © 37 (31 March 2023 - INR (122}




SAMIN JV Business FHotels Private Limited

CIN USS1IMDLIATPTC2 14129

Notes ¢o the financial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2024
TN aneersnes ot Rupees prlfrons, uniess mtherwive statedd;

2) Sensitivity analysis

Reasanably possible changes at the reporting date to one ¢l (he relevant aciearial assunptions, hokding other assumptions canstant, weould have affected the detined benefi obligaton by the

amounts shown below:

[riscount rate {00 5% movement}
Tuture salary growth (0 5% movement)

Eor the year ended
31 March 2024
[ncrease * Dlecrease *

For the year ended
31 March 2023
Increase * Decrease *

(001} )
]| (0 0

(00
1

Although the analysrs docs not leke acecunt of the full disirtbution of cash lows expected under the plan, it dees provide s approximation of the sensitivity oF the assumptions shown.

* Positive amoeunt represents increase in provisicn
* Megative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and morlalily are not matenal and hence not disclosed

Weighted average duration of detined benetit abligation .14 vears (31 March 2023 12 vears}

Therz was no change in the methad and assumptions wsed m prepaing the sensitvity analysis from pricoe years.

b} Maturity profile of defined henefit obligatinn
Year

Ota ] year
o 2 year
2 to 3 year
3tod year
4t 3 year
5o & year
i year anwards

Year

Ota | year
I to 2 year
2t 3 year
3ted year
4 ta 5 year
St O year
& year onwards

As al
31 March 2024

.01
(RO b

0.28
0.28
013
.06
.02
.01
0.20

.96

As at
31 March 2023

[N
als
0.07
0.03
0
[tAH)
0.2

0.54




SAMHI J¥Y Business Holels Private Limited

CIN USSINDLIBNIPIC2I42Y .

Notes to the financiol statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
FAI camreunts in Rupees molons, anless othemsise aiedi

28 Finance costs Fur the year ended Yor the year ended
31 March 2024 3 ¥lavch 2023
[frerzst expense on Anarcaa: lathifines carsied ar amortised cost
- Murn-comverteble debentures - 1.326.21
- Loans from banks and financial insutcaons £ 6 4% I
- Loan from Helding Company 13 &k -
- Others L&t .29
[meereat expense on delay in deposit of staiumry dues 122 1 56
her Fnance costs 308 754
6056 1.584.7T0
19 Drepreciation and amortisatinn sxpense For the year ended For the year cmted
31 March 2024 31 ¥March 2023
Depreciatin om property, plant and squperent 1069 0623
Amortisateon of imangible assets ’ - La?
100,96 17,31
30 Other expenses Far the vear ended For the year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fepair andd inairtenance
- Build:ny el 1048
- Machinery L7490 le 23
- Others 422 g
Advertispment and business gromoton : 4i36
Coammssion 33e
Commumicalion ERG]
Consumption of stores and supplies ilw2
Contractuat b 24 46
General admimsiation expenses o3
Insurance x)
Legal and professierdl charges 11927
Loss ar lorern exchanue fluctuanon (aet) (W]
Management and incentive fees G372 TRIT
Payment 10 audunss 27 (2]
Poaer_ fuel and water 3B 2003
Loss allawanee for trade receivables - 4 B0
Rates amit 1axes ITES 2105
Trairing expenses ) L0
Travell:ng expenses 2843 BLE:
viscallanenus exponses 03 537
S87.M SI0.23
"Pavment te auditors
Staturosy audit 220 17%
itermbursement of expenses {38 00
.78 1.84

3t Earningsi{loss) per share (EPS)

Bastc EPS 15 calolated by dividemy the prafit{lass) fun e veur attobutable w equity shareholders by the weighiod aveeage numdber of equity shares outstardrny, dising the yaas
Diluted EPS 15 caleclated by dividing the nrofitfloss) for the vear asiburadle to the equity sharehoiders by wewhted average nure of equity shares outstanding dunay the vear plus the weighsed average number of

ety shaees that woubd be ssued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

Far the vear ended Vor the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Nt profitTnss) sitnboahle w equity shareholders 192 50 (EOT 1oy
Wenghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculaton of hasie EPS 124,780,000 124, TR0
Wephied averaye oumbern of equity shares satstanding guring the year for caleclaton of diluted FPS 124,740,000 L34 T80,0G0
Wommal value of ity shaee (INR) 1000 19 G0
Basic earminysdloss) per shans (INIR) 154 (7 16)
154 (7. 18]

Diluted sannings(losst per share ([WR}




SAMHI JV Rusiness Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2MHIPTC 214128

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts in Rupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

32

(a)

{b)

33

Contingent liabilities and commitments

fto the exteni not provided for)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Commitments
Estienated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capifal
accoun! and others, and not provided for

Caontingent liabilities

a. In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obtigations under The
Emplovees’ Providenl Funds And Miscellangous Provision Act, 1932 The Company has heen legally advised that there arc interpretative challenges on the

application of judgement retrospectively and as such does ntot consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.

b. During the vear ended 31 March 2021, the Company had received a notice under Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 for the period FY 2014-15 to FY 2017-18
{upto Tune 2017} on grounds of excess availment of CENVAT credit and short payment of service tax involving an amount of INR 90.93 including interest under
Section 75 of the Finance Act, 1994 and equal penalty under Rule 15 of the Cenval Credit Rules. 2004 and Section 78 of the Finance Act, 1994 [n earlier years, the
Company had filed a written submission denying all allegations made in the notice before the Commissioner of Goods and Services Tax (Appeals} which was

pending for disposal.

Subsequent to 31 March 2024, the Company has received an unlavorable order from Cominissioner of (ioods and Services Tax {Appeals). In response 1o such
unfavourable order, the Company filed a writ petition with Delhi Fhigh Court in this regard.

The management is of the view that based on the merits of the arguments put forward and [acts of this case. the outcome is likely to be in the favour of the Company
and no provision is required to be created in the books

Operating Segments

The lolding Company’s Chief Exccutive Officer has been identified as the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM') since he is responsible for all major
decistons wr.t the preparation and execution of business plan. preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facity.
CODM has examined the Company’s performance [rom product and geographic perspective and has identified 4 single business segment 1.e. "Developing and
running of hotels”, hence no speeitic disclosures have been made.

a) Information about products and services
‘The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels", therelore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable

by [aformation about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in fndta. Further, there are no assets located outside Tndia.

c) Infermation about majer customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenuc from one customer which would amount o 10 per cent or more of the Company’s revenue,




SAMUHT J¥ Business Hotels Private Limired
CINUSS(0EDL20LIPTC214129

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Murch 2024
(A amounts in Rupeex mllinns, waless othenise spereee}

34 Reluced party disclosures

a) Related party and natore of related party relationship where control exists:

|Nnmr|: |

Name¢ of related party

[Holding Company i SAMH] Hotels Eamited

b} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place doviag the currcat yesr and previous year:

Deseription of refalionship

MName of relareif party

Hulding Compaiy SAMHT Hotels Limited

Fellow Subsidiariss CASPLA Hotels Private Lumited

Argon Hotels Private Limired

SAMHI Hotels { Ahwnedabad) Private Limited

Barque Hotefs Private Limired

<} Retated party transactions during the curcent year/previows vear:

Particulars

1lolding Company

Kellow Subsidiaries

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

3 March 2024

31 March 2023

Legal und professionai charges

SAMHI Hotels Linnted

9474

8373

[nterest income lrom financial assets at anortised cost

SANHT Hotels Lioniged

(3203

223.09

Loun received from

SANHE Hotels Linited

S00.00

Repayment of loan (in¢luding interest acerued)

SAMHT Haotely Limited

306.19

Inan given by the

Eoan reccived (from SAMHE Hotels Limited) adjosted agai

SahHT Hotels Limued

laterest expense on financial lixhilities carvied at amprtised cost

SAMHI Hotels banuted

13.60

Reimbuy of expenses (net)

SAMHT Hotels Tamited

TRT

T8

{ASPILA Hotela Private Luamited

SANHI Hatels [ Ahnedabad) Private Limited

ted

211

Argon Hotels Private Lunited

743

382

Bargue Hotebs Private Limired

0Q3

t of non-convertible debentures

Net gain on fair valuation of equity comy

SANHI Hotels Lamuted




SAMII 3V Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USSLIDE2OTIPTC2ZI4L2Y

Nates 1o the financial seatements for the year ended 31 March 2024
AN amognts o Repees sulltens, wiless otherdse stated)

d} Related party balances 2s af year end

Particulars

Holdi

Fellow Sub

P

fes

2 Company

31 March 2024

3 March 2023

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Trade payables
SAMHI Horels Limued

L1836

93 36

g0

SAMHI Hotels { Ahmedabadh Private Limited

C 45PTA Hetels Povate Lomnsted

{32

Loan to holding campany {including interest accrued) {refer to Nate 33

SANHI Hotels Limited

T3 68

[460.0%

Capital reserve

SAMH] Hotels Limted

32.44

3244

Cang 1 interest component of loan to holding cempany

SAMHI Hotels Limited

[ E)

610.54

Equity component of non-convertible debentures

SAMHI Hotels Limited

A06, 20

81t 20

Other receivables

SAMHI Hotels Limuted

SAMH! Hotels € Ahmedabad) Povate amited

036

£ ASPLA Hotels Povate Limited

053

Argon Hotels Prvate Linuted

2.10

Note:

(i) Refer Note 17 and Nete 19 for the secunties: guarantzes proviged! raceived by the Company on behalf of its related entities for loans obtained from banks and financial institunons

{11} The Company has provided securities on behalf of followng falow subsidianes

Particulars

31 Maurch 2024

31 March 2023

- [hacque Hotels Private Linured

- Aggon Hotels Privale Luoiled

{Represents the lunits sanclioned by bunks wnd financial mstiluleons o ellow subsidiaces on
aceount of the security piven by the Compaiy}

315209
1.338.00

3,152.00
1,338.00

{11i] The transactions with related parties are within the ordinary course of busuress. Duistanding balances af the vear-cnd arc unsceured and settlement ocewrs in cash
{1} For the vear ended 31 Sarch 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Company has non recorded any impaiment of recervables relating to anowns owed by related parties. This asscssment 15 undertaken a

each reporting period.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A) Financial instrnmenrs by eategary and fair valne

The below table summarizes the juduerients and estimaies made 0 determiming the Fair values of the finanaal instruments that are {ad recosneeed and measared @ Br value and (b} measured a1 amortised east and for
whica fair vatues are disciosed m ihe financial slalements Toe provice an ind:calion aboct the elabiiiy ol the inpats used i determining faw salue. The Compansy has classified vs financial wstruments it the three

Ievels preserbed under the accounting standard

As at 31 March 2004

Particulars
Level of hierarchy Fair Yalne Fair Value Throngh| Amortised Cost
Thrangh Profit Other
and lL.uss Comprrhensive

(FVTPL) Income (FYTOCH

Financial assets

Mon-currend financial assets - [oang 2 - - 711 58
Mem-current fimancral assers - Others - - 171 7%
Current linaneaal assets - Trade 1eceivables - - 33 95
Cucrent financial assets - Cash ard cash equivalents - - 103 37
Carrent Feancial assets - (thers - - d oK
Total financial assers - - 1,083.97
Financial {iabilitics
Non-gorrent fmanciai labohees - Borrowmys 2 - - 2,947 84
Current finarc:al habelities - Borrowings 2 - - 1439 47
Current financia. liabdines - Trade payables - - 2049346
Current financial labilines - Others - - 10268
- - 360233

Total financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2023

Particnlars
Level of hierarchy Fair ¥alze Fair ¥alue Thrangh | Amortised Cost
Through Profit Cher

and Loss Comprechensive

{I'VTPL) Income (F¥TOCT)
Finunsial asyers
Non-cureent financial 2ssats - Loans. 2 - g | i) 0
Non-current financial assets - Others 1267
Current financial assets - Trade recervables - 471
Curren financial assais - Cash and cash equivatens - - S0
Current fnanceal assers - Others - 3538
Total linancial assets - - 165394
Financiai liabilities
Nan-zurrent financial abiuties  Burrow:nges 2 - - 3.747.97
Curreat financial labiaties - Borrasw s 2 - - 534 83
 arrert firencial liabilities - Trade pavables - - 22317
Currer: financzal liahil.ties Oithers 11403
Total financial liabilities - - 4,517.01
Financial assets and Ti es measured at amortised coar - Fair value measurements As al As At

31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023

Non-current financial assets

83547 S0 a4

{.0ans {interest free ioan) {level 23 ¥

= Represents fair value of loan to bolding company

wpa and 30 March 2023 12.15%pa)

Sizatficant unehserakle inputs used by the Coampany tr detenmine Jaw value of loans (Intecest free .sand 1s discouat rate (31 Marek 20240 1]

The fair value of trads revervables, cash and cash couiadents, other curtent financoal assets, cutrent burrowings, current trade payables wnd athes current financial liablistes approsimate heir carmying amounts. due Lo

their short-tesm rarure.

Interest rates on nen-curtent borrawings {borrowings from bank and Snanceal institurion) are equivalent to the market rate Such borrowings =ee ot floatny rates which are reser at short interuals Accordingly. the
carytg s alue of such Tonowings approximates Far value

ion of pther non-current financial assets has been dizclosed to he sime as carry:ng value as there is an signiftcant differsnce between carmying valuc and Fair value

Fair waiua
Faie value of banic deposts (inehedelin nther non-current fnancial assets) an lnan o holding company (inferest bearng loan) are equivalent to heir carmying amount. as the wlerest rate oo them s eguavalent o ma kel

rate.

Yaluation rechnique used to determing fair value
Saecific valuation wechmgue used to value financial nstruments include:
- the: farr vabue For Joar. to hoiding company (nterest free Tnant as calendaigd based on cask Fows discounted wsmg current lendmyg rate

B} Measurement of lir values

Farr values are catcgonsed into dhfferent levels in a faic value Merarchy based on the npuwss wsed in the valuauon technuues. There has been nao ransfer betwesn Level | Lovel 2 amid Lenvel 3 for the year ended 31

Mezrch 2024 and 31 March 2023
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) Financial risk management

Risk management ramework

The Compary's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial nisks market nsk: (meluding forewsrs gxehangs vk and mlerest rate nsk). credis <isk and liquidy sk

The Helding Compary’s Chret Financial Officer under the dwecions of the Board of Direciurs impiements financial risk management pelicigs acrss the Company The Company's risk managerners polcies are
established to idenhfy and analyse the rsks Faved by the Company, 10 set approprate sk Lmits and conteols, to monitor nsks and adherence to lurits u osder to m mmize the Enancial impact of such cisks The risk

management policies and svstems are revewsd reguiarly 1 reflect caanges i markes condions and the Company's activites

i. Credil risk

Credu nsk .5 the nsh, of firztcial loss te the Cernpary 1§ @ custoner oF countersaty to a financial ivstrumznt Fails 1o meet 13 contiactual obl aatiens The sarmang amount uf financial assets represers the maxununt

crecht rsk exposure. The Company has crodit polrces i ptace and the exposures o those crodit msks are momatored oran ongoing basis

The Company™s pedicy 1510 place zash and zash eguivakens and other barx balances with hanks weth mond credit raung

The Compary Fas goven seconty depodits 1o wanious stalulony authorines and ~endors for secunng secvices from then and rental deposits for employee accommedations. The Comparny has loan receivable balanue

cuistzndeng as at vear end from its holding company. The Company €oes not expect any defzilt trom thess partivs and aceinily the rizk of defau’t is neghgidle ot rl

in respect of credit exsosures from trade receivables, the Company bas polictes i place to ernsure that sales on credit withoul ¢ollateral are made prineipa v to travel agents and corperate compan es with an apprapriate
credis story Thg Compary has estahlished @ credit policy imder winch each new cusiomer 15 amatysed individualiy for creditwonkbiness betore enleomg inlo contract Salss w0 other custumers are made 10 cash or by

cradiz cards.

The Cotnpany establishes an al'eowance for ienpairment d-at reprasents is expected credit |osses (n respect ol :rade recevables The managemert uses a sumpl:fied approach for the purpese of compulabon of expectad
creda Toss far irade recevables Tn moneoning customer eredit nsk | cusomens arg grouped acearding to ther credit charactensues, including whether they are an indsaidual or legal entity, wdustry and sxusience of

prevacds fmancial aifficulues, if 2oy
Thete are na sistuficant concenrraticrs of aredit nsk wizlun the Compary
The Company cons:ders a firancial asset 1o be i detaals when

« the dettor ts unblkely W pay its cresld cbligations 1o the Compary in full or
+ the fnancial asset .3 more than two years past due

The prensian matris wsed for derermininy |oss allowance on srade recervables as s 31 harch 2024 13 less than G months | 91%, & months - 3 year 3 03%, |- 2 years 37 08% - 93.37% and mare than 2 years: 1004

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

For the year ended For ihe vear ended
31 Marck 2024 31 Murch 2023
Chpening halance 613 13s
Prevision no longer required wotlen buck during the veer {3 43} -
Prasusion masle during the vear - 480
167 6,15

Closing halance

The impaiment peovisions For faancial assets disclosed abowe are based on aszumplions shout risk of default and sxpectesd lass rates The Company ases udgement in makirg Miese assorpuons and selecung
inputs to the imparrmend caloulaton, based on the Company s pase bistary. eosting merkel coni:lons as well ay Brwand lioking esiumates at the end uf vach reparting period

ii. Liquidity risk

1 ity niske 13 the riss that ke Company will encounter shrficulsy m meeling the abligations associated with its fnancial iiabtlitzos that are senled by delenng cash or another finaneial asset. The Company™s appivach

1o nanaging liquidty <= to ersure. as far as possible, that o woll have sufficient Lguidiny 10 meet its lalsltes when ey are due, amler both norma; and siressed condibong. withgur iazurring unaccestable losses or

risking damage to Commprany s o

2Pl

sufficient cash to meet operation newds Such |ecasting

Management montars soll:ng forecas:s of the Company ‘s gwdaly posinan and c2sh ard cash equivalents oo the basis of expected cash fiows 1 esure it ka
fueilities and covenum vornplumce

takes wite consideration the Company s dest reftnancing plans. undrawn commitzd borrowa

¢ sk management famewark for the managemenr of the

Liltimate respenziondiy for hgquidity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors of the Company, whiah has estublished an appropriate liquuds
Cempany s short-termm, mediuen term and ong-term funding and hoguidity mansgement requiremients

{a) Exposure Lo Gquidity risk

2 eontractual matLiites of finarc.a! habilites at the reporuny date. The amounts are gross and undiseounted and exeluding future cont-actual nzerest paviments
Contracteal cash Bows [INR)

The fellowing are the remai

As at 31 March 1024 Carrying amount Teral 0-1 vear 1-2 vears 1.3 years More than 5 vears
Non - derivative flinzncial liabi
Mon-current borrow:nes 2942 84 29770 - 00 a73 20 2005 Oy
Current borrowsngs 41947 439 47 43947 - - -
£ urrent frade vayaales 209 38 209 50 209 30 . - -
Other cunent firzncial liabiities 10 i 1 &0 10 Gt - - -

3,602,533 3,636,690 650,49 9900 673.20 220504

ontractual cash Mows (INR)

As at 3 ¥March 2023 Carrying amount Total B-1 year 1-2 years 1-5 years More than % years
Non-derivative Mnancial fiabi
Mon-current horrowings 374797 3,796 46 - TEID F14 80 321106
Llurrent borcowings 534 83 LR 33483 - - -
Cugrent trade pavables 223107 22477 22477 - . -
Oher carrent financial Laxres 43 1103 1103 - - -

4,517.00 4,567.59 77063 TLLG 514.80 321146
Also, refer note 41 for dizclosures on poIng COBCRCD ASSUMPHSNS.
b} Financing arrangemenis
The Compam: had access o the fullwing undrawn orrewing facilitics at the end of the teporing perivd

Asoat Asat
31 ¥arch 2024 31 March 2023
Flyaiing rate
Expiring withir: one vear (bank averdralt and other Zazilities} 3451 3156
3451 3154

e
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Tl ¥arket risk

Macket sisk 15 the nisk tha the changes in macket prives such as forsign exchangs rates and interest rates, that will 2ffect the Compary’s expense oo the value b it heldings of finaneial mstreeeents The obgective of

marke: reak maragement 15 to managze and contral market rizk exposures within aceeptabie parameters, while optimesing the relurr:

Currency risk

Crrency nsk far the Company

3 the nisk that the futive cash eutflows an accounk of payables for manasement fees and other expenditure wall Muciuate hecause of charges un foregn eachange rates The Company 1s

enposed 1o the effects of Auctuation 1n ke prevailing feraign currency exchanze rates on its finanew position and cash Naws Expogsare arses primarily due te cxchange rate luciuatons between the funcoonal currency

ang other currencies. The Manapen
Expiosure to cnrrency risk
The Company's exprsuee 10 Foreszn curvency nsk at Uie ensd of he repurling persod ae as follows

31 March 2024

Financial liah
Teade payanles

M dLarch 2013

Financtal fiabilities
Trude payables

evaluates forelan excianwe rale exposure ansnyg from forein currensy transactions on periodic basis and Foilows apmoearate nsk management paleses,

{urrency Amount in loreign Amaunt
currency INR in millions
LS 03 220
Currency Amount 1 Amoual
currency
{in millivns)
LED 043 3503

A reasonably possibile strengthening (weaken:ng) of the Indan Ripee asainst foreiun currercy at year end would have affected the measurement of “mancial instruments denominated i fo-eign currercy ard affected
equiey and prodit or loss by the amounts shown below This analvars assumes that 3ll other variables, m particubar imlerest ates, zemain conslanl and woores any ampact of farecast sales and purchases.

{Profit)loss

Equity, net of 3x (increase)/deerease

Fffect in INR thening W 8 Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2624
LISDY (1% mesameent) 2210 W2l 020 A0 0k
0.21 {0.21) 0.21 inzty
{Profit)loss Equity, net of tax (increaseldecrease
Effect in INR trenglheni w Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2023
LISDF (1% mov=oment? 135 [TUEET) 133 [t 35)
.35 (0,35 i35 {0.35)

luterest rate risk

Iierest rate risk is the sk that the tair vaiue or future cash Cows of a financial matcument will fluctuate becaese of changes in market interest waies. The Coroam™s expesure te the ngk of changes i mackel mterest

vates relates pomarLy o the Campany s bartnwangs with foanng interest rates

The Carpany evalustes the interest rates an the market on a1egular basis w explore the option of refiranzing ¢f the borrowmys of the Compuny Moreover, as al 37 Mawch 2024, <he Company's bosrow.ngs are linked 1o

floabing ineersst rates. therehy resulting 17 the adyustiments of its borrowire costs 17 line wath the masket interest

Exposure to interest rate risk

ext-heanng lmancial mstuments s as follows.

The inleresl e podile of the Company™s i

Fixed-rate insiruments
Nor-aurrent ol assers - Lean (Refer Nme 31
Finaneiad assers - hank depusits

Variable-rate instromems

Firanzial halhibes - Casa credil and overdrafl Fagilities trom bank
Financial liatulibes - Teem [oang fiom hanks

Finare:al fiahl:tes - Term loans frem finanzial insteutiens

Fair value sensi - analysis for fixed-rate instruments

31 March 2924 31 March 2023

ERENC: | 4000
165.2G 86 0
Jel 37 ITE T
2400127 708 23
|02 [.205 94

The Campany does nat account for any fixed-rate financiz’ assels or financial liabiiities at fair value erougn profit and loss Therefare, & change inintezest rates st ke reporting date would not affect profitor luss Also,

refer Mote 35A tor Lar value disclosure
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Cash fow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instrumants

A reasonably possiliie change of 1G0 bas:s pornts an inlerest rates ac the repeding date would bave increasedddzcreased) equity and profit ar loss by the amounts shown below Fhis analysis assutnes that all other

vanigbles, remmn vonslant

{Profit)foss Lauity, net of iax
finceeaze)decrense
104 bps increase 100 bps decrease 100 hps increase 100 bps decrease
As at 31 March 2024
Financiat habilies IR.60 {38600 18 60 13B 60}
38.60 (38.60) JK. & (38.60)
As at 31 March 2023
Financral habihbes 393 {397 192 {15923
342 (3.92 3,92 {3.92)

36 Capital Management

The Cempany's policy is to maniain a steang capala: buse 50 ay 1o muintan nvester, credior and market confiderce and 1o sustain future development of the business

The Board of ditectors ef the Company sevks to mamian a balance between the higher returna that might be possible wich kigher levels of horrowing and the advantages ard seeun‘y afforded by a sound capital
position The Company monitors capital using loan o value (LTYY method o ensure that the 1oan to valus does not incoease bevond 65% on any given reporting date at 2 company level

The Company is not subgect to externzlly nbposed capital requirements.

As a part of its capizal management policy, the Company <l a0t have any defaults in the repayment of loans and interest. Further, there have bzen no breach of loan covenants,
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37

38

39

44

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED)

Dues to micro, small and medium suppliers
The arounts remazang unpand to muceo and small suppliers as at the end of the year:

Prinzapal armowenl
Interest thereon

The ampunt of ieterest pad by the buysr &s per the Moo Small und Mediam Enterprises Development Aet, 2006 [MEMED Act, 2006)
Tae ameunts of the payments made w ruern and small supphiers boyond the appemted day during cach accounting year.

The ameunt of interest due and pavable for the period of delay 0 making payment fwhich have been past bt 3evond the appointed day
during the vear) hut vathme adding the interest specified ander MEMED Ao 008

The amourt of Inleres| acerusd and remaining unpaic at the end of each aceounnag vear

The arount of further mterest remaming duc and payablc even in the succeading vears, innl such date when the interest dues as above
wee actual.y pard 1o the small enlerprise los the purpose of disallowance as 2 deductikle expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act

2006

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2022

tn

=]
= o
<1 tn

1544
14l

|41

The management has wentified enterprises which have provided aoods and servoes W e Commpany and whica guaily unges te defintion of micee and small enterprses, as defined under Micro, Small and
Medin Enterpnses Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)] Accoedingly. the diszlosurs in respect of the amounss payable to such enterprises as ar 31 March 2024 and 21 darch 2027 has been made in the francial

statements based on infurtnaton recered and avadldble with the Convpany.

During the current vear, SAMH] Hatels Uiemited (the Holding Company) has charged INR 4 74 {31 March 2023 - INR 83 73] for core Busmess adussone, procarement and other support services The same 1s

hovked as lewal and professienal expense under the head "omer expenses'

New standards and interpretations, not yet adapted

Melienstry ol Corperale Adlaws ( MOAT] notfies new standards or amendmens o the existing stardards under Compames (Indian Accounting Standurdsy Buies as rssoed from Do to tnng As wt 31 Murch 20241,

MOCA Teas ot notified any new standards or amendments 1o the accounting standards which are effective from | Aprid 2024,

Ratios as required by Schedule Ell to the Companies Act, 2013;

Ratic In times/" Numerator D inat 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 Inerease/ decrease %

Current Rato In tirnes Totai current assers Total current leabiiitics )28 2% -2%y

Deht-Equity Rato in nmes Total Borrmwinzs Totai gy 9 i 67y 200y
Farmings hetore finarce larerest Payments = Principal %

Drebt Service Conerage Ratio I times & - - ¥ P L 20 1.0z t9%
depreciat:on and amortisation and lax |Repaviments

Return on Faqury Ratic In % Profitifoss ) for the vear Anergpe Total equity NA NA NA

Irvetton y Luengrven ralic I ey Cost of goeds soud Average Inventory NA NA NA

Trace Revervables teinoser raug ln tmes Revenue from operatons Average Trade Recevvables 2223 2072 ) %
Cost of matenals consumed - Other|Average Trade Pavables - amy

Trade payubles turmover rateo [n bmes = ’ 317 173 13%
exprnses

el capial durnover ratio In Limes Revenue from operations Averges working capilal [2 6% [N -36%

Net profit rata 7 % Profivloush for e year Revenue ftom operslions 13%; ST S11%%

. Prafnlogs) before fi T and|Tangble Mot Woerh + Tosad
Rewwrn on Capilal encploved | [T "fi(lnss) before finance costs and| Tangmble Nt ort MNA NA NA
. tangs Boumaings

Fectum on wvestments [r. %% [rerest [Flnance lncome) [ estment N MA A

Explanations to variance in Ratios:

[hiet capita: umever rane IVariancs is due to increass 1n average werking capital jnczatve) m current vear 88 compared o previeus year |

lf\:et profit ratuw I[mpmwed dug 1o impneveroent w busuwess aclivily duning the vear |

The Crarpany has not presented the follewing rars die fo the regsons green below
{a) Inventory turnavet ratie Since the value of smyemtory w5 msznificant as compared to the total asscts.

thy Beturt oninvestiments. Smce the Company mvesls surplus temporary funds in shor term bark deposits and the income generated s msigeicant 1o lotal lurbover
(¢ The Company has negative rotal equity” capiial empioyed. Therefore. "Return on equity” and “Return on capuial emploved” ratie carnot 2e meaningfully computed and hence

have ot heen discinsed in the fimanciat statements
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Going concern

VR SCUUED. The Compuny has conteastual cash oatflows of INR 639 49 (excluding fuzure contractual mterest pavments)

4z a0 31 March 2024, the Company's current liabilities bias excecded 125 carrenl assets by
due wachin 12 maonths of the halance sheet duty

Based un furure busmess project:ons, the Compaiy expects growlle in s vperations and improved speretng performance 1n conuing perwds and also, expects to san enfranced vash nfiows Lo its operating
activitiza Tlw Company beheves such anbepeted imernally generated Tinds feom opraauons @ feurs alony wath s hediny posion s at 31 March 7074, 05 available revolving ondriver cred:t Fagifiny g5 20
March 2024 and certain sther currem assels (lnancial and noo-financial} as at 31 Marca 2024 welEenable it to meet its Tutne known ublgatons S1e in aext vear, 1 the ordinary course of susiness However, 1
2 diguadity nesd were tooanse, the Company has access 1o requise finanoal and operatenal suppert from SAAHD Hotels Limited thalding compar), whiek should enable st te meet i ongowe capital.
o oplians to maximize hadidity and supplement cash requirgments 35 nevessary

requirements Sborzover, the Company will conlinue wconsider viarous berrow

operatinug, and other heaidis

[r viw: of the znove, the Managemenl and Hogd of Direvtess of the Company dave prepared these fimanc:al szatemeants on a going conssrm Sisis

Crher statutory information

25 hean mmtiated or pending agamss the Congany for hobdnme any Benami propersy

- B3enam proverty, where any proceeding

(1} The Company dees not hawe as
{i1) The Company do not have any 17ansachions witk compamies stouck of
or satistaction which ts vet to be

41111 The Company does aat Rase e char stered with ROC devond the statutory persod.

(1) The Company has net raded o meestes 10 Crmpes curroney or Yimtua® Curreney during the firancial vear

iv1 The Compary dins ot advanced or loaned or mvested funds to any other personds) or entsnylies). includ:ag forcign entines (Intennedianiesy wad the understandi
ta) dizeetly or endsrectly lend or inves: in wibier persans weentlies wWentified 1 any manner whatsoever by or on hzhall of the Company ((Ctimate Beneficanes) or

a that the [ntermediary shail

(b} provude any guarantes, secunity or the fike to o oo belalf of the 1ltenate Deneficianes.
(w1} The Campany has om recerved amy find frem any persons) ar enticyges . cwluding foreiun eneies (Funding Pactvt wath the codersiandine (whether recerded mowoting o otharwese that the Cumpans

shall:
{a) diteethy or indirectly jend ot invest it otaer peTSeNS o SNt
(hyprovide any guarantes. secunny ar the lixe on hehalf of the Llamare Beacticianes

wdentufied 0 any manner whatsnaver by or on behalf of the Fundme Party (L3imate Benefhaianes) o

[vnk The Company has not entered any suek transachion whick 1s not recorded m the Boaks of accounts that has been suervendered or disclosed as meerme during the vear in the tas assessments under e Income
Tax Act. 1961 {such as. search orsurves or any wlber relevant provistons of e Taceme Tax Act, 1860

{vivy The Cempaty has not been deelared wilful Zefailter By any bank or financizl insliution or government or any government aurhorty.
amy loans or advances in the sature of Woans 1o promoters. directors, BEAPs und the related parttes (as Sefined wader Companies Acl, 201731 2ither severally ar fomtly wieh any

[1%]) The Comrpany bas -on grant.
otier person that ars repay 2be o demund of wathout specilying any terms vr penad of repavieent

ix) The Company has used the botrwangs Tom bank wnd hnancial nstituzion for the specific purpose for which it was taken

prescribed urder the Companies Act, 2013

wh has ar aveounting anpact a0 awrent vear or previous finanaml veas

{x1) The Company has contpaed wetb nender ol leyers
[} The Compary has not 2aterad inlo any seleme o anangement
et} The Comrpany has net resalued 113 propes by, plant 2ad eyuipment o meaneible assers or hoth during ersreat vear ar presons vear

{xr) The Compnm s anl reguited to submet quarteely resums o statements with saoks durme the cuerent vear o preyous VAT,

slaements are held m the name of the Comzany. Hlowever. original title deeds are under lien with lender

(xn 0 Phe Litle deeds ob ummnonahle propemy disclosed inthe finaneai
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